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The purpose of this Amendment 02 to the Solicitation specified in Block 9A is to provide response to Question 11 which was 
accidentally omitted in Amendment 1.  
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Therefore, the solicitation is specifically amended as detailed in the following pages. 

Victoria Ghent 
Contracting Officer 
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II. QUESTIONS and RESPONSES 
 
 
A. General – Preparation and Submission of Proposals: 
 

Q.1 Given the due date of October 9, we are concerned about being able to incorporate USAID 
responses to questions (due September 17) into our technical and cost proposals.  Therefore, would 
USAID extend the due date for proposal submission by 30 days? – 
- Given the amount of information requested, would the Mission consider extending the submission 
deadline so that Offerors will have time to incorporate responses into their program design? 

 
R.1:  The due date for receiving proposals is extended to October 15, 2008 cob 
 

Q.2 Please indicate what equipment and vehicles purchased under the existing program will be 
transferred to the new project. Will the new project be required to purchase all new vehicles? If no 
decision has been made in this regard, please provide a plug number for major purchases so that there 
can be consistency in costing proposals. 

 
R.2: USAID does not anticipate transferring any equipment to the new project.  Offerors are expected to 
submit lists of equipment which will match with proposed approach. 
 

Q.3 On page 40, Section H.12 includes the full text of AIDAR clause 752.7007, Personnel 
Compensation.  This full text version includes subparagraphs (c)-(j) which does not appear in the 
current online version of AIDAR. Please clarify.  

 
R.3:  The clause in the RFP is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:  
 
“752.7007 PERSONNEL COMPENSATION (July 2007)  
(a) Direct compensation of the Contractor’s personnel will be in accordance with the Contractor’s 
established policies, procedures, and practices, and the cost principles applicable to this contract.  
 
(b) Reimbursement of the employee’s base annual salary plus overseas recruitment incentive, if any, 
which exceed the USAID Contractor Salary Threshold (USAID CST) stated in USAID Automated 
Directives System (ADS) Chapter 302 USAID Direct Contracting, must be approved in writing by the 
Contracting Officer, as prescribed in 731.205-6(b) or 731.371(b), as applicable.” 
 

Q.4 In Section L.2 "Instructions to Offeror", part (c)(3)(ii)(A)(1) mentions that electronic submission 
of proposal is deemed on time if submitted "not later than 5:00pm one working day prior to the date 
specified for receipt of proposals." Please confirm the deadline for electronic submission is October 9, 
2008 Addis Ababa COB, as stated in the RFP issuance letter. 

 
R.4: this a Standard Provision in the FAR.  There is nothing USAID/Ethiopia can do about it.  Note: it 
applies only to proposals received after the time specified and it is one of two methods that the 
Contracting Officer can use for determining that accepting the late offer would not unduly delay the 
acquisition.  
 

Q.5 Section L.5 (page 77) includes a requirement for submission of cost or pricing data unless an 
exception is requested and granted.  The exceptions to requesting CCPD shown at 15.403-1(b) (1) 
would seem to apply as the RFP meets the test at 15.403-1(c) (1).  Please clarify. 

 
R.5: The exceptions to cost or pricing data requirements apply to this RFP and, in lieu of submitting cost 
or pricing data, Offerors may submit a written request for exception by submitting the information 
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described in the L.5 – 52.215-20 provision. NOTE: this provision is kept in the RFP to alert Offerors that, 
in accordance with FAR 15.403-1(b)(1) and the Standard Provision, the Contracting Officer may still 
require information other than cost or pricing data to support a determination of price reasonableness or 
cost realism. 
 

Q.6 Under L.6 "General Instructions to Offerors" (p. 78), the RFP states that organizations can submit 
proposals electronically or via hand delivery. However, in section L.8 (p. 83), the RFP states that the 
cost proposal is to be submitted via one original and two hard copies. Are Offerors permitted to 
submit cost proposals via electronic mail in a message separate from the technical proposal?  

- Under L.6 “General Instructions to Offerors” (p. 78), RFP requests “proposals by email compatible 
with MS WORD and Excel… Only those pages requiring original manual signatures should be sent 
via facsimile).” Instead of faxing, would the Mission accept the Technical Narrative to be submitted 
in MS WORD and the Budget to be submitted in Excel, and accept attachments to the technical and 
cost in PDF format? - Electronic delivery instructions note that the proposal should be compatible 
with WORD and EXCEL. Are the Annexes and cover page (which include signed documents such as 
letters of commitment) allowed to be in PDF format or must all signed items be FAXed? If PDF files 
are acceptable, may the entire proposal be sent as PDF files? 

- In Section L, General Instructions to Offerors on pp.78-79 in subsection (a) Delivery Instructions, 3 
methods for submission are presented as acceptable. If we choose Option iii) Offerors are 
encouraged, when possible, to submit both electronic and hard copy of the proposals,  would the 
Mission accept that the electronic copy be received at the mission by October 9th and that the hard 
copy of the proposal be postmarked by October 9 but not received by the Mission on that very day 

- On page 78, Section L.6 (a) it states that proposals may be submitted via email OR hand delivery, 
with a stated preference for receiving both emailed and hard copies.  However, in the paragraph 
leading to sub para (a), it is stated that proposals must be submitted "...at the internet email address 
and via regular mail or hand delivered....”  Further, on pages 83-84 reference is made to submission in 
three-ring binders.  Please clarify the submission method requirement. 

- Section L.6 (p. 78) of the RFP states that responses to this solicitation “must be submitted in 
accordance with Section L of the RFP electronically at the internet e-mail address and via regular 
mail or hand delivered…”  Under (a) Delivery Instructions it states that the proposal shall be 
submitted either electronically or hand delivered.  Please clarify if the proposal should be submitted 
both electronically and in hard copy or if it is electronically or hard copy. - Page 78 of the RFP says 
that “Offerors are encouraged, when possible, to submit both electronic and hard copy of the 
proposals.” If the electronic version of the proposal is delivered by the deadline of COB October 9, 
2008, can the paper copies be received at a later date? If so, when do they need to arrive at the 
Mission?  

- The RFP states Offerors must submit the cost proposal in three-ring binders.  On page 84 it states that 
“Offerors must also provide electronic copies of the budgets on CD-ROM…”  Please clarify that this 
means the cost proposal should not be submitted via email. 

 
R.6 In accordance with below L.6 (a)(i) paragraph, the entire technical proposal may be sent as PDF 
files, but not the entire cost proposal. Facsimile submission is not authorized. If electronic submissions 
are received by the due date and time, paper copies can be received at a later date, preferably within one 
day after the RFP closing-due date. L.6. (a)(iii) states that “Regardless of the method used the Technical 
Proposal and Cost Proposal must be kept separate from each other. 
 
Paragraph L.6.(a)(i) entitled General Instructions to Offerors in the RFP is deleted in its entirety and 
replaced with the following: 
 

“i) electronically – by email(s) compatible with MS WORD, PDF and Excel to 
caddis@usaid.gov and request for acknowledgement without attachment to mcsow@usaid.gov , 
and gwondimagegnehu@usaid.gov. There has been a problem with the receipt of *.zip files due 
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to anti-virus software.  Therefore, Offerors are discouraged from sending files in this format as 
we can not guarantee their acceptance by the internet server. Documents not accepted by the 
Internet Server will not be considered as part of the Offerors proposal.  (Facsimile submission of 
part or the entire proposals is not authorized)” 

 
And First and Second paragraphs in L.8 are deleted and replaced with the following: 
 

“Offerors must submit separate Cost/Business Proposals, as instructed in L.6 (a)(iii). The cost 
Proposal must include the following information.   Failure to include all information or to 
organize the cost proposal in the manner prescribed may result in rejection of the proposal as 
being unacceptable.  
 
Offerors must provide electronic copies of the budgets preferably in Microsoft Excel with 
calculations shown in the spreadsheet.”   

 
Q.7 Page 81, Section L.7.2., Qualifications and Experience of Proposed Personnel, it states, “… a 
signed letter of commitment from each candidate indicating his/her: … (d) prior work 
experience.” Prior work experience is usually included in resumes, not letters of commitment. Please 
clarify how much prior work experience is to be included in the letter of commitment for proposed 
candidates.  
- Section L.7.2, (page 81) requires each resume for senior short-term consultants’ positions and 
candidates identified in the proposal and needing USAID approval to be accompanied by a Letter of 
Commitment.  Please confirm that LoCs are not required for home office technical and management 
personnel who are full-time current employees of the prime contractor or sub-contractors. 

 
R.7 In L.7.2, second paragraph, “(d) prior work experience” is deleted. LoCs are not required for 
Offerors home office technical and management personnel, unless proposed as “Key Personnel” 
 

Q.8 Procurement: the customs clearance process has changed in many countries over the past year 
and some shipments have been delayed in the clearing process. Can you provide an explanation of the 
process for the clearance of duty free commodities for Ethiopia? Please provide sample letters, if any, 
that we can use as models when requesting clearance for duty free commodities. 

 
R.8 USAID projects are tax exempted.  Support and guidance by USAID for duty free clearance and 
processes will be provided after the award. 
 

Q.9 Does the RFP require that the organization be registered as a non-profit/for-profit organization 
with local authorities prior to award or within a certain timeframe after the award? 

 
R.9 USAID requires that Implementing Partners (Contractors) comply with host country laws. The 
Contractor, if not yet registered in Ethiopia, will be authorized a reasonable timeframe – to be specified in 
the contract at time of award – to comply with the requirement. 
 

Q.10 (p.103) Attachment 5 (a) 1.  List in an annex to the technical proposal up to 5 of the most recent 
and relevant contracts for efforts similar to the work in the subject proposal, specifically in teacher 
education and capacity development. Can the Mission please clarify whether this is 5 contracts 
allocated amongst the whole proposal team or 5 per subcontracted partner and the contractor 

 
R.10 Language is revised to read:  “The most recent (3-5 years) and contracts for efforts similar to the 
work in the subject proposal and implemented by the Offeror and or proposed sub-contractors.”  
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Q.11 Page 81 states that full CVs and references are required for key personnel (the Chief of    Party and 
the Deputy Chief of Party) but also states "(t)he same applies to senior short-term consultants 
positions and candidates identified in the proposal and needing the USAID approval". Please confirm 
that CVs and references are required for all senior short term consultants as well. 

 
R.11 In general, CVs and references are required, with bio-data signed sheet, for consultants’ approval 

by CO. If the individuals are already identified by the Offeror in the proposal, and if the 
documentation is provided, the goal is to have them approved at same time as award is signed – as 
much as possible.    

 
B. Technical  
 

Q.12 What policy studies were conducted and disseminated under BESO/BEP/EQUIP2? Will USAID 
make them available to Offerors in order to avoid any duplication of effort in Offerors’ IQPEP 
proposals? 

 
R.12 The guiding parameter here is the current needs of the sector. However, the policy studies 
conducted in the past are:  

• Ethiopian Successful Schools 
• Financial Cost of the Education System 
• Ethiopian Second National Learning Assessment  (ESNLA) – Grades 4 and 8 
•  Ethiopian Third National Learning Assessment  (ETNLA) – Grades 4 and 8 
• Assessment of the Ethiopian education and Training Policy 

 
Q.13 Is USAID envisioning continued support via IQPEP for the IRI initiative developed during 
BESO/BEP? If so, what kind of support is envisioned? 

 
R.13 No support to IRI is envisaged under IQPEP. 
 

Q.14 What specific outcomes is USAID seeking in the focus on pastoralist and Muslim populations in 
disadvantaged areas? 

 
R.14 IQPEP will continue to strengthen the center of excellence for pastoralist education, which is 
currently in Jijiga teacher training college. IQPEP welcomes ideas from bidders on special support to 
pastoralist and Muslim communities if they are within the purview of the RFP. 
 

Q.15 The RFP mentions primary schools as loci of intervention. Some education programs in regional 
states, particularly in Afar and Somali, focus on alternative models to reach the EFA goal, and these 
alternative modes of delivery represent significant portions of their enrollment. To what extent are 
alternative models of education to be addressed? For instance, may alternative basic education centers 
be included where the RFP discusses school-based or cluster level activities? 

 
R.15 IQPEP targets only formal schools. USAID has another program targeting alternative basic 
education centers. However, it is expected that the winner will work closely with other implementing 
partners involved in alternative basic education activities. 
 

Q.16 Reference is made throughout the document to supporting 22 public TEIs. As of this academic 
year (EFY 2001) there are 26 Colleges of Teacher Education (CTEs).  Can the Mission please confirm 
that these 4 additional TEIs will not be included? 

 
R.16 All the 26 colleges of teacher education (CTE) will be considered. 
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Q.17 Development of training materials under the capacity-building component: It is our 
understanding that the AED/BESO/BEP/EQUIP2 projects developed and disseminated multi-module 
training packages for capacity building at various levels of education administration, including the 
development, piloting and revision of tools for planning and management. Will USAID make 
available the capacity-building modules and planning tools so that Offerors might assess their 
strengths and weaknesses and propose a strategy for the new program? 

 
R.17 USAID doesn’t believe that the training modules are necessary for the proposal development. The 
successful Offeror will have those modules after the award. 
 
Section C.1 and C.2 

 
 Q.18 Page 11 summarizes the poor performance of pupils on successive national assessments 

(EBNLA, ESNLA, ETNLA) between 2000 and 2007. Can USAID provide detailed reports and/or 
data sets on these national assessments so that Offerors can examine the variables of subject matter, 
grade, region, language, and other important variables? The report of the most recent assessment 
(ETNLA 2007) is needed in order to design strategies and interventions that are responsive to the 
actual problems that result in poor student performance. 

 
R.18 Please see attachments. 

 
Q.19 Page 12 refers to a significant procurement and distribution of materials and school kits. What 
specifically are these materials and what was included in the school kits? 

 
R.19 The school kits include teaching-learning methods, classroom management and learning 
assessment techniques 
 

Q.20 Page 13 of the RFP indicates that “Background on Ethiopia and USAID programs in Ethiopia is 
available at “Ethiopia” in USAID's DEXS at www.dec.org.” A review of this resource finds that 
important information on BESO/BEP/EQUIP2 is missing. Documents that are essential for designing 
a follow-on program, and that are not available on this website, include the following:  

a. BESOII Final Report;  
b. AED/EQUIP2 SOW "extension" (Jan-Oct 2008);  
c. Technical Reports on Teacher Training and Capacity Building activities undertaken 

during BESO/BEP/EQUIP2;  
d. Copies or samples of pre-service, in-service and capacity-building training manuals; 
e. Technical Reports on ENLA 1-3;  
f. Copies or description of supplementary materials in critical areas such as HIV/AIDS and 

nutrition developed under BESO II;  
g. Policy Studies conducted during BESO/BEP/EQUIP2. 
 

More information is needed about previous education interventions if organizations that were not 
involved in the previous project are to be able to develop a responsive strategy. None of this essential 
information is available on DEC, nor is it in the BESOII evaluation report (2007). Information in the 
above documents are important to designing an effective program. Will the Mission make these 
documents available? 

 
R.20 Documents that USAID Ethiopia considers relevant for the development of the proposal are 
attached.  
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Q.21 Student Assessment: p. 14 and (sec C.3.3): undertake students' learning assessment at the 
primary level. Assuming this refers to the next two cycles of ENLA, it is essential for Offerors to 
understand the level of support provided by BESO/BEP in the previous cycles. 

a. Did the contractor pay for costs related to the development, field testing, administration, 
scoring, analysis, and reporting? 

b. Did the contractor design the test and individual test items?   
c. Is there an item bank?  
d. Did the contractor manage the sampling process? 
e. Is the contractor expected to undertake a student assessment, outside that of ENLA?   
f. Will USAID make available the third NLA Report (ETNLA)? 

 
R.21 a - Yes, USAID covered all expenses through BESO/BEP. 
 
R.21 b - No. The design of the test items and all other activities of the NLA were done by the National 
Organization for Examinations of the Ministry of Education. The Contractor provided technical assistance 
in different phases and paid for the cost of the assessment.  
 
R.21 c - No. 
 
 R.21 d - No. That was the responsibility of the National Organization for Examinations of the Ministry of 
Education. 
 
R.21 e - No. 
 
R.21 f – The NLA Report is attached to this RFP Amendment. 
 
Section C.3 
 

Q. 22 Page16 includes a requirement that the IQPEP contractor will enhance the realization of the 
(MOE's) School Improvement Program and build a learning environment that is orderly and 
attractive.  

a. Can USAID be more specific in this requirement? 
b. What specific problem or objective is this addressing?  
 

R.22 a - The school Improvement Program (SIP) is based on the school leadership and school community 
undertaking a thorough diagnosis of the overall learning-teaching environment of their respective school 
and developing a strategic plan for school improvement. IQPEP, together with the government, in its 
target schools, will provide training to school directors and teachers to enable them undertake the self 
assessment, planning, implementation and monitoring responsibility for school improvement. 
 
R.22 b - The SIP is the bedrock of the drive by the government and donors to improve classroom 
teaching-learning and improving the quality of primary education. Schools through their school strategic 
plan will be accountable for the targets and activities they set and undertake. IQPEP will help in building 
the capacity for the SIP in its target schools as envisaged in the RFP. 

 
Q.23 Page16 also includes a requirement to address strong home-school partnerships. Can USAID 
explain this IQPEP requirement further and provide indicators? 

 
 
R.23 IQPEP will work closely with girls advisory committees in each target school to enhance girls’ 
access to school. The indicator could be girls’ enrollment in target primary schools.  
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Q.24 Page 16: Please expand on USAID's requirements or objectives regarding infusion of education 
technology into teacher training curricula. Can USAID explain this IQPEP requirement further and 
provide indicators? 

 
R.24 As indicated in the RFP, the instructors in the TEIs will be provided with the necessary support to 
enable them produce computer based lessons for students. The instructors will identify critical topics, in 
which students may want additional support, and prepare computer-based lessons and exercise using 
education technology. USAID welcomes any suggestion or strategy by Offerors to infuse computer 
technology into the lessons as well as methods of teaching-learning in the teacher training colleges.  

 
Q.25 (p.16) “The professional capacity of instructors in 22 public and 10 private TEIs will be 
strengthened.” Can the Mission please elaborate on the criteria for the selection of private institutions 
to participate in IQPEP? 

 
R.25 USAID doesn’t believe the criteria are necessary for proposal development at this point since the 
RFP doesn’t require the identification of specific teacher training institutions at this point. Selection of the 
10 private TEIs will be done in consultation with USAID after the award, i.e., during the planning period    
 

Q.26 Page 17: The first indicator for overall achievement is the percentage of children in lower grades 
(2-3) who are proficient in reading in USAID supported primary schools. 
a. Is USAID referring to an accepted standard measure of reading proficiency? 
b. Does the MOE have such a standard? 

 
R.26 a - Yes, it is referring to an accepted standard, but with some adaptation to the Ethiopian situation.  
 
R.26 b - There is MOE standard at the moment, which it used for NLA.  
 

Q.27 Page 17: The second indicator for overall achievement is mean scores of standard achievement 
tests for pupils of different grades in USAID-supported primary schools.   

a. By “standard achievement tests,” is USAID referring to the next administrations of 
ENLA?  

b. Will the IQPEP contractor have input into the sampling procedure of the MOE to steer 
the ENLA to IQPEP schools? 

c. Has USAID/BESO/BEP paid for the administration of ENLA assessments in USAID-
supported schools? 

 
R.27 a - Yes. 
 
R.27 b - Yes. USAID supported schools will be included in the sample.  
 
R.27 c - Samples of USAID-supported schools were part of the ENLA. So, USAID has paid for the 
overall assessment, ENLA. 

 
Q.28 Page 17: The sixth indicator for overall achievement on p. 17 is Percent of Woreda Education 
Offices that have adequate plan documents. Does MOE, or does each Region, have a standard against 
which IQPEP will assess the adequacy of WEO plan documents? 
 

R.28 There is no standard. However, as has been done in the past, one has to set some sort of standard 
for an adequate planning document on which one can evaluate plans. 
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Q.29 Page 17 of the RFP lists as one of the indicators the "number of learners enrolled in USG-
supported primary schools or equivalent non-school-based settings." What do "equivalent non-school-
based settings" refer to? 

 
R.29 This is an indicator that serves all the education programs of USAID. In the case of IQPEP, it 
refers only to “the number of learners enrolled in USG-supported primary schools”. 
 

Q.30 Indicators listed (p. 17) include mean scores of student achievement. Will the contractor be 
expected to continue to use the National Learning Assessment tools deployed in 2000, 2005 and 2007 
to collect data about the IQPEP intervention or should new assessment tools be developed and 
utilized. If the National Learning Assessments are to be used is there a predetermined schedule for 
when the next rounds will be conducted through 2013? 

 
R.30 The successful contractor will use ENLA data (results).Thus it is not expected to collect data on 
achievements. The next NLAs are expected to take place in 2010 and 2013. 
 
Section C.3.1 Strengthened pre-service teacher training 
 

Q.31 Page18: The first major activity listed under C.3.1 is “Centers of Excellence will be 
established/strengthened in 12 TEIs.”  

a. Does USAID intend for IQPEP to continue to support the three Centers of Excellence 
established with AED/BESO/BEP/EQUIP2 support and establish Centers of Excellence 
in nine (9) new TEIs? 

b. Is USAID looking to replicate the focal areas of three Centers of Excellence in new 
regions or establish Centers with new focal areas?  

 
R.31 a - No. Twelve new centers of excellence will be established and support will also be provided to the 
existing three centers of excellence.  
 
R.31 b - Both strategies will be used. During the planning phase, in consultation with USAID and the 
Ministry of Education, the successful contractor will determine the new focal areas and the current focal 
areas that will be replicated. 
 

 Q.32 Page18: The second major activity is enhancing the use of information technology in TEIs, and 
the 4th indicator relates to the number of computer-based student lessons produced in the TEIs.  

a. Can USAID provide information on the amount and type of input and support to 22 
public TEIs (i.e. information technology, resource centers) that were delivered with 
previous BESO/BEP/EQUIP2 support?  

b. Is USAID intending to replicate the same type of IT/infrastructural input into the same 22 
TEIs?  

c. Does USAID have any specific objectives or outcomes by which success should be 
measured in this area? 

d. What is GPA system is currently used in TEIs? Will USAID share data on test scores and 
current trends? 

 
R.32 a - This initiative is piloted in the 22 colleges of teacher education and is at its infancy.   
 
R.32 b - There could be common IT needs across the TTCs. There may also be a need to be focused based 
on the needs of each TTC. The detail will be worked out during the planning stage after the award. 
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R.32 c - The immediate result that USAID expects is the number of lessons prepared and the use of those 
lessons by students. But ultimately the objective is to improve the quality of education offered in the 
CTEs. 

 
R.32 d - USAID doesn’t believe that this is necessary for the proposal development.  

 
Q.33 Page 18: BESO/BEP/EQUIP2 initiated a TEI linkage program including 22 TEIs and over 100 
primary schools.  

a. Can USAID provide additional information on this linkage program?  
b. Does USAID have any specific objectives or outcomes by which success should be 

measured in this area? 
 
R.33 a - The program links pre-service institutions with primary schools to enable the two institutions 
cross fertilize and enhance learning-teaching from the exchange. Actually, this strategy has been in 
existence with previous USAID support also. It builds upon the practicum program of TTCs that has been 
part of the teacher training system in the country. While the practicum was a practice session for teacher 
trainees in their neighboring primary schools, the linkage initiative take that further and tries to; 

• Establish model classrooms in the primary school as a hub for introducing hands-on teaching and 
learning methodologies; student assessment techniques, etc; 

• Build the capacity of teachers in linkage schools; 
• Help develop teaching aids. 

 
R.33 b - USAID expects the Offerors to indicate how its linkage interventions would be connected to 
actual quality improvement in the primary schools as well as changes in the way TTCs train as a result of 
the linkage experience. 
 

 
Q. 34 Page18: Is USAID envisioning the same type of staff development for instructors in the 10 
private TEIs and for instructors in the 22 public TEIs? If different types of support are envisioned for 
public/private TEIs, could USAID please explain? 

 
R. 34 There are staff development units in most TTCs that have been established as a result of USAID’s 
support. It is advised to use the units as a center for future staff capacity building as they are well 
embraced by the institutions. But, they need new ideas and strategies to rejuvenate them. USAID cannot 
be specific on this. It all depends on doing an assessment of the capacity needs and the challenges and 
opportunities existing. We welcome the Offerors’ suggestion. 

 
Q. 35 Page 18: The fifth and sixth bullets require enhancing the use of active learning methodologies 
and continuous assessment in TEIs and primary schools. Is USAID expecting the IQPEP contractor to 
replicate and expand the utilization of previously-developed guidelines and tools, or develop new 
ones? 

 
R. 35 Both may be needed. USAID has invested millions on the development of various tools, 
guidelines and manuals in these areas and they have been useful. We encourage the successful Offeror to 
utilize existing tools as far as they continue to be useful. However, we also encourage innovation and 
state-of-the-art tools that could complement the existing one.  
 

Q. 36 On p. 18 of the RFP, although not mentioned in the narrative for C.3.1, the following is listed 
as one of the major activities: "the professional capacity of instructors in the 22 public and 10 private 
TEIs will be strengthened." The only other place that the private TEIs are referenced in the RPF is on 
p. 21, in section C.3.5. Target beneficiaries: "The target teacher education institutions will be all 22 
public and 10 selected private teacher education institutions." In operating practice, the status of 
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teacher professional development through private TEIs seems to be in question. Please provide 
further guidance on how professional development activities with private TEI’s should be addressed 
through IQPEP. Specifically:  a. Would IQPEP work with these 10 private institutions even if their 
credentials continue NOT to be recognized by the government?  b. In this case, would IQPEP's work 
with these 10 private institutions be focused on their preparing primary school teachers for PRIVATE 
schools? 

 
R. 36 It is correct that the government has phased out the TTIs and the private institutions are turning to 
colleges. Therefore: response to “a” is that IQPEP would only work with those private colleges and TTIs 
that are recognized by the government and to “b” not necessarily.  
 

Q.37 The RFP in C.3.1 (p.18) refers to TEIs or Teacher Education institutions throughout the 
document. Can the Mission confirm that this refers to Colleges of Teacher Education offering 3-year 
diploma credentials, and does not include Universities offering degree level teaching credentials? 

 
R. 37 Read as Colleges of teacher training. It doesn’t include universities offering degree. 
 

Q.38 p.18 “Syllabi and materials in critical areas such as nutrition, gender, family planning, 
environment, etc. will be developed and training on how to use the materials will be given”. Can the 
Mission please confirm that these syllabi and materials are for TEI programs only and that the training 
is targeted at TEI instructors?   

 
R. 38 Yes it is for TEIs programs and TEI instructors. 
 

Q. 39 Section C.3.1 (p. 18) describes in the final bullet of activities student clubs that focus on a 
variety of issues. Please clarify that the students in this instance would be those enrolled at TEIs or 
the linkage schools. 

 
R. 39 It refers to students In TEIs (TTCs).  
 

Q. 40 Section C.3.1 (p. 18) references cluster primary schools in the third bullet. Please confirm that 
these are the same “pre-service in-service linkage schools” referenced on bottom of page 16. 

 
R. 40 Yes, it is the pre-service in-service linkage school. But those schools could also be cluster schools 
that may include other schools. 
 
Section C.3.2 Enhanced in-service teacher training 
 

Q. 41 Page 19: the second bulleted indicator requires developing training materials including self-
instructional kits.  Are the training materials and self-instructional kits developed under BESO/BEP 
obsolete?  Is the contractor expected to use previously-developed training materials/self-instructional 
kits or develop new ones? 

 
R. 41 USAID encourages the successful Offeror to utilize existing materials and self-instructional kits 
as far as they continue to be useful. However, USAID also encourages innovation that could complement 
the existing one. 
 
 

Q. 42 Page19: The fourth bullet and eighth bullet require the utilization of core trainers for providing 
training. Can USAID explain what is meant by “core trainers” in this context? 
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R. 42 Core trainers are trainers who have been trained before for the purpose. They are found in the 
regional education bureaus and also institutions of higher learning as well as on freelance basis. New core 
trainers could also be trained. 
 

Q. 43 Page19: The ninth and 16th bullets require “establishing and equipping at least 200 woreda 
cluster resource centers with the necessary training resources… and equipment.”  Will USAID please 
clarify what it means by “necessary resources”? 

 
R. 43 These are equipment and materials necessary to produce various types teaching aids and teaching 
materials. 
 
C.3.3 Improved decentralized planning and management 
 

Q. 44 Page 20: A computerized Personnel Management Information System (including user manuals) 
has been developed and piloted in all regions and selected woredas during BESO/BEP/EQUIP2. The 
IQPEP contractor is required (second bullet) to establish a computerized PMIS in 200 woreda 
education offices.  

a. Is USAID intending that the existing software/hardware/training package be replicated 
and expanded?  

b. If so, will USAID provide Offerors with information regarding the hardware and 
software requirements and configurations of the PMIS?    

c. Is USAID looking for a new PMIS to replace the one that has been developed?  
 
R.44 a - Yes, but improvements could be made if useful. 
R.44 b - USAID doesn’t believe that this is necessary for the proposal development. 
R.44 c - Not necessarily. We believe they are working. However, improvement can be made. 
 
 
 

Q.45 Strengthening the capacity of 10,000 Kebele Education and Training Board (KETB) members 
from at least 2,000 kebeles: BESO/BEP/EQUIP2 has developed training modules for KETBs and has 
conducted KETB training using these modules. Is USAID asking Offerors to replicate and expand the 
use of these modules, or is it necessary to replace these with new training modules? 

 
R. 45 USAID encourages the successful Offeror to utilize existing modules as far as they continue to be 
useful. We don’t believe in re-inventing the wheel, we believe in improving the wheel if need be. 

 
Q.46 Page 20: In requiring IQPEP to build the capacity of 10,000 school principals, is USAID 
suggesting that these trainees are coming from 10,000 different primary schools? 

 
R.46 Yes. 
 

Q.47 Page 20: The fifth bullet requires the IQPEP contractor to enhance the capacity of Regional 
State Education Bureaus (RSEB). Can USAID elaborate on how and where regional bureau capacity 
continues to fall short of expectations? This is essential in order for Offerors to develop a responsive 
capacity-building strategy. 

 
R.47 Capacity is low in almost all areas. However, focus will be in planning, management, finance, 
monitoring and evaluation. The awardee, together with the Ministry of Education and the regional 
education bureau, could also undertake a thorough assessment of capacity needs at all levels before it 
develops a capacity building plan if the Ministry had not undertaken one before the date of the award.  
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Q.48 Page 20: The sixth bullet requires the IQPEP contractor to strengthening the management 
information system of the RSEBs. Can USAID elaborate on how and where regional bureau capacity 
continues to fall short of expectations? This is essential in order for Offerors to develop a responsive 
capacity-building strategy. 

 
R.48 The regional education bureaus use personnel management information system (PMIS), material 
management information system (MMIS), local area network, etc. However, their utilization is not as 
expected. Therefore, it is important to provide support to ensure that the regions are using them regularly 
and without problem.  
 

Q.49 Page 20: The seventh bullet requires the IQPEP contractor to provide limited commodities to 
WOEs, RSEBs, and the MOE. Can USAID be more specific as to the definition of limited 
commodities?  

 
R.49 Those commodities are related to the activities that will be undertaken PMIS, planning, etc.  
 

Q.50 Page 20 calls for IQPEP contractors to undertake two national learning assessments. Is IQPEP 
undertaking all aspects and costs of the NLA (financial, technical, logistical, and administrative) or is 
IQPEP providing technical assistance to the MOE/NOE? It is essential to know the scope and 
parameters of IQPEP technical assistance for the ENLA.  

 
R.50 Undertaking the NLA is the responsibility of Ministry of Education, particularly the General 
Education Quality Assurance and Examinations Agency. The IQPEP contractor will support the Agency 
financially and technically. The technical assistance will be periodical and limited to higher level 
assessment tasks, such as designing the assessment and higher level analysis and interpretation of data. 

 
Q.51 Will USAID make available a current list of woredas that have been targeted under 
BESO/BEP/EQUIP2? 

 
R.51 There were no target woredas during BESO/BEP/EQUIP II. The targets were schools. Although 
the Offerors are requested to propose list of woredas in their proposals, the final selection of the 200 
woredas in IQPEP will be completed during the planning phase in consultation with USAID, Ministry of 
Education and regional education bureaus. 
 

Q.52 Section C.3.3 on page 20: the first bullet states building the capacity of 5,000 woreda education 
officers from 800 woreda education offices. Section C.3.5 on page 21 refers 200 woredas as target 
beneficiaries. Please confirm that Offerors are intended to work in 200 woredas.  

 
R.52 The focus for the in-service teacher training, establishment of woreda cluster resource centers, 
establishing PMIS, etc. will be 200 woredas. However, the capacity building of education officers will 
also cover other woredas after fulfilling the needs of the 200 woredas. 
 

Q.53 p.20 – the RFP states that ‘Establishing computerized personnel management information 
system in 200 woreda education offices and providing training and facilities for the same woredas’. 
Assuming that the computerized personnel management information system (PMIS) is already 
installed on equipment in the 200 woreda education offices, is the PMIS software original code 
available and licenses for this PMIS software available to be transferred to this project with no cost 
implications for this project?  Are the developers of the PMIS software available to answer questions?  
Is the PMIS equipment available to be used by this project with no cost implications for this project?  
How old is the PMIS equipment, and can we have a complete description and specifications for this 
equipment and any connectivity requirements?  When is it estimated that this equipment will need to 
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be replaced?  How much budget is spent maintaining the existing PMIS equipment (with 
replacement) and is there a reserve of spare parts available that can be transferred to this project? 

 
R.53 The PMIS software is developed by BESO. USAID has not installed the PMIS on equipment in 
the 200 woreda education offices. The successful Offeror will provide computer, the PMIS software, 
other necessary materials and training for each of the 200 woreda education offices. The software will be 
available for the successful Offeror with its source codes free of charge.   
 

Q.54 Section C.3.4. (p. 21), the RFP discussing Gender Issues, using the terms “girls,” “females,” and 
“women.”  We seek clarification regarding the use of the term “girls” in the following instance:  the 
RFP calls for the establishment of “girls’ clubs” in teacher education institutes and for the provision 
of tutorial and mentoring services to “girls” in TEIs.  Please confirm that the term “girls” in these 
instances refers to graduates of primary education who are attending pre-service teacher training 
programs.    

 
R.54 Yes, it refers to graduates of general secondary school (Grade 10) and who are attending pre-
service teacher training programs in TEIs. 
 

Q.55 On p. 22 of section C, the RFP states: “Offerors shall identify in their proposals the woredas and 
zones (which shall be distributed faily based on the objectives of IQPEP) in which they plan to 
implement the program.” The RFP continues: “The contractor will work with the regional state and 
city administration education bureaus to confirm or revise the identified woredas and zone education 
offices and to identify schools.” Given that all recommendations made in proposals will need to be 
ratified by the Ethiopian authorities, to what degree of detail does USAID intend for the Offeror to go 
in naming specific woredas and zones? 

 
R.55 The Offerors are not expected to get concurrence from the regional education bureaus on the list 
of proposed woredas in their proposals. The consultation with and concurrence of the regional education 
bureaus is required during the planning phase after the award.  
 

Q.56 p.22, “Offerors shall identify in their proposals the woredas and zones (which shall be 
distributed fairly based on the objective of IQPEP) in which they plan to implement the program”. 
Given that on p21 (target Beneficiaries) the RFP states “IQPEP will be working all over the nation 
though with more focus on pastoralist communities in Afar, Benishangul Gumuz, Gambella, Oromia, 
SNNP and Somali regions”  can you please elaborate on the concept of “fair”? For example, should 
we overweight the number of woredas allocated to pastoral regions. 

 
Q.56 It is important to have national level criteria based on the number of woredas and schools and do 
some adjustment for pastoral regions.  
 

Q.57 On page 22, C.3.5, Offerors are instructed to, whenever possible, target the same schools as 
those targeted under CSPP and OVC. Does the reference to OVC include schools targeted in both the 
CASCAID and PC3 programs? 

 
R.57 Only CASCADE. 
 

Q.58 Page 82 notes that the Ministry of Education will provide office space. Has the Ministry offered 
a certain amount of space or is this open for negotiation? Will the contractor likely need to make 
structural (physical, electrical, etc.) changes to the office space and/or provide furniture and 
equipment? 
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R.58 The Ministry of Education has already provided office space and the successful Offeror is not 
expected to pay rent. However, it should buy furniture and equipment.   
 

 
- END OF AMENDMENT 01 TO SOLICITATION 663-P-08-013 - 


